
MINUTES 
 

 VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Village Hall Auditorium 
53 South La Grange Road 

La Grange, IL  60525 
 

Monday, October 13, 2008 - 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

The Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange regular meeting was called to order at 
7:35 p.m. by President Asperger.  On roll call, as read by Village Clerk Robert Milne, the 
following were present: 

 
PRESENT: Trustees Horvath, Kuchler, Langan, Livingston, and Palermo  

 
 ABSENT: Trustee Wolf 
 
 OTHERS: Village Manager Robert Pilipiszyn 
   Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson 
   Village Attorney Mark Burkland 
   Community Development Director Patrick Benjamin 
   Finance Director Lou Cipparrone 
   Assistant Public Works Director Mike Bojovic 
   Fire Chief David Fleege 
   Police Chief Mike Holub 
   Doings Reporter Jane Michaels 
   Suburban Life Reporter Joe Sinopoli 
  
2. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 

A. Appointment – Plan Commission 
 

President Asperger stated that a vacancy was created on the Plan Commission 
with the recent resignation of Roger Tyrrell.  President Asperger submitted the 
appointment of Greg Paice to fill the unexpired term and serve on the Plan 
Commission for a term to expire in 2010.  Trustee Langan moved to approve the 
appointment, seconded by Trustee Livingston.  Approved by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 

President Asperger thanked everyone involved in the successful open house at the Fire 
Department.  Residents should have received a copy of the Village Spokesman 
announcing the upcoming public information fair being held at the Community Center, 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes 
 Monday, October 13, 2008 - Page 2 

on Tuesday, October 21, which will provide residents with information on programs to 
help reduce energy / heating costs and home maintenance services. 
 
The TIF Joint Review Board will meet on October 23, 2008.  President Asperger noted 
that the last TIF tax levy will be filed this December and that the Village will hire a 
consultant to assist the Village with ending the TIF next year, including planning 
assistance to effected local taxing bodies. 
 
The La Grange Business Association will hold their annual Halloween Walk on Saturday, 
October 25.  Lastly, President Asperger noted that the Village Board will host its second 
in a series of Town Meetings on Monday, October 27, 2008 at Ogden Avenue School.  
Residents were encouraged to attend and express comments on topics of interest to the 
Village. 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Tim Trumpeter, 318 S. Ashland noted his concerns relating to the zoning text amendment 

to create a variation for maximum allowable height of detached garages.  Mr. Trumpeter 
expressed his disappointment in certain restrictions and conditions noted on the 
ordinance. 

 
 Laura Thomas, 311 S. 6th Avenue as the petitioner for the variation request also 

expressed concerns with restrictions the Plan Commission included within the ordinance. 
 
 Harlan Hirt, 421 S. Spring disagrees with wording on the draft minutes of the September 

22, 2008 Village Board meeting.  
 
4. OMNIBUS AGENDA AND VOTE 
 

A. (Moved to Current Business for further discussion.) 
 
B. Not-For-Profit Solicitation Permit – You Can Make It, Inc. 

 
C. Consolidated Voucher 081013 ($699,276.46) 

 
D. Minutes of the Village of La Grange Board of Trustees Regular Town Meeting, 

Monday, September 22, 2008 
 

It was moved by Trustee Langan to approve items A, B, C, and D of the Omnibus 
Agenda.  Trustee Horvath requested item 4-A be removed from the Omnibus 
Agenda and placed under Current Business for further discussion. 
 
It was moved by Trustee Langan to amend the motion to approve items B, C, and 
D of the Omnibus, seconded by Trustee Horvath.  Approved by roll call vote. 

 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes 
 Monday, October 13, 2008 - Page 3 

Ayes:  Trustees Horvath, Kuchler, Langan, Livingston, Palermo, and 
President Asperger  

 Nays:  None 
 Absent: Trustee Wolf 
 
5. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

4-A.  Ordinance (#O-08-26) – Amendment to Village Code / Immobilization for 
Outstand Traffic or Parking Violations 

 
Trustee Horvath inquired about the five day notification time period and 
suggested a ten day notification would be more appropriate.  Trustee Horvath also 
inquired about wording in the ordinance regarding removal from the violation list 
after payments are made. 
 
Village Attorney Burkland noted that five days is a reasonable amount of time to 
respond to a notification that an owner’s vehicle is about to be placed on an 
immobilization list.  Chief Holub explained there are three notices provided to 
vehicle owners prior to immobilization.  Attorney Burkland noted several 
opportunities in the ordinance for appeals and removal from the violation list 
upon payment of fines.  Attorney Burkland added that the Village modeled its 
ordinance after widely-used, court-accepted procedures.   
 
Having received clarification, Trustee Horvath moved to approve the ordinance 
amending the Village Code regarding vehicle immobilization for outstanding 
traffic or parking violations, seconded by Trustee Lagan.  Approved by roll call 
vote. 

 
Ayes:  Trustees Horvath, Kuchler, Langan, Livingston, Palermo, and 

President Asperger  
 Nays:  None 

 Absent: Trustee Wolf 
 
A. Presentation – FY 2007-08 Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports:  Referred 

to Trustee Kuchler 
 

Trustee Kuchler stated that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
of the Village of La Grange for Fiscal Year May 1, 2007 to April 30, 2008 as 
prepared by the Finance Department has been reviewed by the auditors Sikich 
L.L.P.  Copies of the audit report were previously sent to the Board under 
separate cover and are available for public inspection at the La Grange Public 
Library, in the Village Clerk’s office, in the Finance Department as well as posted 
on the Village’s website.  Trustee Kuchler described a single operational 
efficiency regarding the Village’s ratio of water billed as compared to water 
pumped.  This item was addressed by scheduling leak studies which detected 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes 
 Monday, October 13, 2008 - Page 4 

several large breaks which were repaired.  Trustee Kuchler requested Mr. Dan 
Berg, a partner with Sikich L.L.P. to give a brief overview of the audit report. 
 
Mr. Berg stated that Sikich L.L.P. has rendered an unqualified or “clean” opinion 
stating that Village financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2008 are 
prepared and presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Mr. Berg specifically noted attention to the management discussion 
analysis provided by Sikich L.L.P.  Mr. Berg expressed his availability to answer 
any questions about the process or the audit. 
 
President Asperger indicated that no Village Board action is necessary and 
accepted the report.  Staff was given a direction to submit the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report to the Government Finance Officers’ Association for 
consideration of the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting.  President Asperger noted the Village has received this prestigious 
award for eleven consecutive years and expressed her gratitude to Finance 
Director Lou Cipparrone and Assistant Finance Director Joe Munizza for their 
excellent financial management. 

 
B. Ordinance – Zoning Text Amendment / Creating Variation Authority For 

Maximum Allowable Height of Detached Garages:  Referred to Trustee Horvath 
 

Trustee Horvath explained that the present Zoning Code does not allow variations 
from height limitations for garages.  Noting that the Plan Commission conducted 
a public hearing on the application to amend the Zoning Code on August 12 and 
September 9, 2008, Trustee Horvath described the language; conditions; and 
limitations whereby the Plan Commission unanimously recommended approval of 
the zoning text amendment. 
 
Village Attorney Burkland clarified various portions of the language; conditions; 
and limitations.   
 
Trustee Horvath moved to approve the ordinance for a zoning text amendment 
creating variation authority for maximum allowable height of detached garages, 
seconded by Trustee Palermo. 
 
Trustee Horvath expressed concerns with some of the limitations in the ordinance, 
specifically noting items (vii) prohibition of a toilet on the second level of the 
garage; (viii) prohibition of floor-to-ceiling partition walls on the second level of 
the garage; and (x) requiring the property owner to execute a declaration of 
covenants and allowing the Village to conduct annual inspections.  President 
Asperger invited Community Development Director Patrick Benjamin to briefly 
comment on the Plan Commission deliberations and he responded.   
 
 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes 
 Monday, October 13, 2008 - Page 5 

Village Attorney Burkland noted the difficulty in obtaining an administrative 
warrant to gain entry to residential areas and explained that the proposed wording 
regarding the Village’s right to inspect is intended to stop the temptation for 
making a second dwelling unit on the lot.  Trustee Horvath thought that this 
provision was redundant because the Zoning Code currently states such a 
prohibition. 
  
Trustee Langan noted that the Plan Commission recommended the wording as a 
mechanism for the Village to enforce the code.   
 
Trustee Horvath felt that some of the restrictions do not reflect current work and 
life styles and thus does not incent detached garages, which the Village has found 
to be desireable. 
 
Trustee Livingston complimented the Plan Commission for their work, but agreed 
that the annual inspection is too restrictive and commented on the possibility of 
re-examining wording in the ordinance. 
 
Discussion ensued and after much deliberation, President Asperger stated that the 
Board could take a vote on the ordinance as it stands or remand it back to the Plan 
Commission for further review. 
 
Trustee Horvath withdrew his previous motion to approve the ordinance for a 
Zoning Text Amendment, seconded by Trustee Palermo.  Approved by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Trustee Horvath moved to remand the ordinance for a Zoning Text Amendment 
back to the Plan Commission for reconsideration of items vii; viii; and x, 
seconded by Trustee Palermo.  Approved by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Trustee Kuchler inquired if the Village Code could be amended for all garages 
and Attorney Burkland noted that would be a separate process requiring building 
code changes.  

 
C. La Grange Theater – Continued Discussion 
 

President Asperger reviewed the previous proposal suggested by Trustee Kuchler 
to purchase an easement encompassing the façade of the theater building.  Should 
the theater cease operating as a theater the owners of the theater would then return 
the Village’s investment.  President Asperger added that any transfer or 
subsequent new owners would be obligated to comply with the agreement.  The 
theater owners are acceptable to this arrangement and have indicated so.   
 
President Asperger explained that the Village Board did not reach a consensus on 
funding amounts and mechanisms.  A discussion was necessary tonight to give 
some indication to both staff and the owners, because the next Village Board 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes 
 Monday, October 13, 2008 - Page 6 

meeting will be a Town Meeting at Ogden School with a shortened agenda to 
allow for more public comments on neighborhood issues.   
 
Although no formal vote would occur this evening, President Asperger explained 
that staff and the Village Attorney need a direction to draft an agreement and 
negotiate final terms.  In the absence of Trustee Wolf, President Asperger recited 
an electronic message received from Trustee Wolf indicating that she wanted to 
be part of the spirit of moving forward, but was not in favor of utilizing TIF funds 
for this project.   
 
President Asperger confirmed the consensus of the Board for the structure of the 
project and opened the floor to the Trustees for discussion. 
 
Trustee Horvath expressed two concerns – need for a uniform policy to consider 
similar requests for support from individual businesses and security that the 
Village’s investment will be returned. 
 
Trustee Kuchler noted his belief that the uniqueness of the theater warrants 
Village participation, and similar requests by other businesses can be considered 
on a case-by-case basis.   
 
Trustee Livingston noted that the theater is a unique economic asset and believes 
the Board is moving in the right direction.  Trustee Livingston stated that annual 
reporting to the Village should be included in the agreement.   
 
Trustee Langan inquired about TIF funding and Finance Director Cipparrone 
responded.  Trustee Langan noted that economic development does not require a 
payback. 
 
Trustee Palermo questioned:  pro forma information submitted by the theater 
owners; security of the Village’s investment; and the use of TIF Funds, but would 
agree to use the Village’s share of the TIF surplus distribution estimated at 
$600,000. 
 
Trustee Horvath does not feel the Village has adequate information relating to 
construction estimates and costs. 
 
President Asperger noted the difference in opinions on the Board with three 
Trustees in favor and three Trustees opposed to utilizing TIF funds for the 
proposed renovation of the La Grange Theater. 
 
After further discussion Trustee Langan moved to direct Village staff to negotiate 
and draft an agreement to enter into a public private partnership for the renovation 
of the La Grange Theater through the purchase of a façade easement utilizing one 
million dollars of TIF funds, with an operating commitment as previously 
discussed, seconded by Trustee Kuchler. Motion approved by a four to two vote. 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes 
 Monday, October 13, 2008 - Page 7 

 
Ayes:  Trustees Kuchler, Langan, Livingston, and President Asperger  

 Nays:  Trustee Horvath, Trustee Palermo 
 Absent: Trustee Wolf 

 
6. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 Village Manager Robert Pilipiszyn advised residents to avoid Burlington Avenue 

between La Grange Road and Ogden Avenue as it will be closed to through traffic in 
order to resurface the roadway.  Commuters and business customers were advised to use 
alternative parking sites in the business district. 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS NOT ON AGENDA 
 

Harlan Hirt, 421 S. Spring Avenue stated his comments to the Village Board regarding 
Gordon Park.  Mr. Hirt noted his strong opposition to the Village supplementing the 
proposed development by trading a portion of the parking lot. 

 
8. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  
9. TRUSTEE COMMENTS  
 

Compliments were extended to Finance Director Cipparrone and Assistant Finance 
Director Munizza for their financial management and posting of the audit on the Village 
website. 
 
Trustee Horvath commented the need for additional traffic enforcement on interior 
streets. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

At 10:20 p.m. it was moved by Trustee Langan to adjourn, seconded by Trustee 
Livingston.  Approved by unanimous voice vote. 
 

 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Elizabeth M. Asperger, Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  _________________________________ 
Robert N. Milne, Village Clerk  Approved Date 
 
H:\eelder\ellie\Minutes\VB101308.doc 


